
TOWN OF PATTERSON 
 

PLANNING BOARD MEETING 
November 7, 2013 

 
AGENDA & MINUTES 

 
                 Page # 
1) Thunder Ridge Ski Area – Sign Application 1 – 2, 

39 – 40 
Tabled for further information 

    

2) NYSEG Site Plan – Site Plan Application 2 – 8 Site walk to be scheduled. 
Discussion of site expansion. 

    

3) Patterson Garden Center – Site Plan 
Application 

8 – 15 Site plan approved with conditions. 

    

4) Kenneth Defreitas – Wetlands/Watercourse 
Permit 

15 – 17 Public hearing requirement waived. 
Wetlands/Watercourse permit granted. 

    

5) Putnam Lake VFW – Site Plan Waiver 17 – 24 Site plan waiver granted with conditions. 

    

6) Sol Shine Scentral – Site Plan Waiver & 
Sign Application 

24 – 35 Site plan waiver granted. 
Sign permit granted. 

    

7) Other Business   

      a.     Windward Holdings Corp. – Request 
for Zoning Change 

36 Site walk to be completed. 

      b.     Patterson Fire Department – 
Proposed Local Law 

36 – 39 Recommendation to Town Board. 

    

8) Minutes 42 & 45 July 25th and September 5th approved. 

 

michelle
Approved



 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

P.O. Box 470 
1142 Route 311 

Patterson, NY 12563 
 

Michelle Lailer 
Sarah Mayes 

Secretary 
 

Richard Williams 
Town Planner 

 
Telephone    (845) 878-6500 
FAX             (845) 878-2019 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 TOWN OF PATTERSON 
 PLANNING & ZONING OFFICE 

 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Lars Olenius, Chairman  
Howard Buzzutto, Vice Chairman  

Mary Bodor 
Marianne Burdick  

Gerald Herbst 
 

PLANNING BOARD 
Shawn Rogan, Chairman 

Thomas E. McNulty, Vice Chairman 
Michael Montesano 

Ron Taylor 

Edward J. Brady Jr. 

 
Planning Board 

November 7, 2013 Meeting Minutes 
Held at the Patterson Town Hall 

1142 Route 311 
Patterson, NY 12563 

 
Present were: Chairman Shawn Rogan, Board Member Thomas E. McNulty, Board Member Michael 
Montesano, Board Member Ronald Taylor, Board Member Edward J. Brady Jr., Rich Williams, Town 
Planner, Ted Kozlowski, Environmental Conservation Inspector, Andrew Fetherston of the Town 
Engineer’s office, Maser Consulting, and Michael Liguori of the Town Attorney’s office, Hogan & Rossi. 
 
Chairman Rogan called the meeting to order and led the salute to the flag. 
 
There were approximately 5 members of the audience 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
Michelle Lailer was the Secretary and transcribed the following minutes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated thank you. 
 
 
 1) THUNDER RIDGE SKI AREA – Sign Application 
 
Applicant did not appear. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated thank you. Okay, the first item on the agenda is a sign application for Thunder 
Ridge Ski Area, is anyone here for that application, okay.  Rich, I saw in the information provided that 
there is a note from the Building Inspector that there’s a violation on the property. 
 
Rich Williams stated yes, he is of the opinion of that there are violations, he’s asked for a little time to 
investigate it, we’ve been working with Mike Liguori, Town Attorney on trying to, go through all the 
documents and try to come up with exactly what the violations are, be a little bit more specific.  There are 
other issues, I don’t know if you want to table this to the end to see if somebody shows up. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated sure, let’s do that. 

michelle
Approved



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 2 

 
 
Board Member Taylor stated are these, would these violations be remedied by the application. 
 
Rich Williams stated no. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated no. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated okay. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated we’re trying to establish some baseline for, what we’re trying to do is establish a 
baseline for the use and then apply the code as it, from its inception forward, it’s a little bit of a difficult 
project considering how long it’s been in existence… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah, sure. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated and how many code provisions they haven’t complied with over the years, so that’s part 
of the problem. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated any objection from anyone on the Board for tabling this ‘til later in the meeting. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated no. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated alright, anyone here from NYSEG for Terry Hill Road… 
 
 
 2) NYSEG SITE PLAN – Site Plan Application 
 
Mr. Luke Mangels and Ms. Deborah Drake of NYSEG were present. 
 
Mr. Mangels stated yes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated some on up sir, state your name for the record please. 
 
Mr. Mangels stated sure. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated thank you. 
 
Mr. Mangels stated Luke Mangels, New York State Electric & Gas and I am the local rep for the Brewster 
Division and Deborah Drake is also here and she is the Supervisor for the whole East Region. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we remember Deborah, she’s been here before. 
 
Mr. Mangels stated just want to hang this up here. 
 
Ms. Drake stated how you been. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated good, how are you. 
 
Ms. Drake stated good. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 3 

 
Chairman Rogan stated great. 
 
Mr. Magels stated alright… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated in fact we were just saying I remember being on this site, it had to be 10 years ago. 
 
Rich Williams stated two oh six. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated 8, 7. 
 
The Secretary stated 7. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated 7. 
 
Mr. Mangels stated alright so what we have going on is the Kent Substation which is here, located off of 
Terry Hill [Road], originally installed in 1947 and what we want to do is, the project entails the automation 
and the upgrading of the substation so, this green box here is a 12’ by 8’ control house, which would be 
installed, inside the control house is the apparatuses that will talk to our corporate headquarters in 
Binghamton and that way we can monitor everything that’s going on in this substation.  Also, required 
would be this green line here, is the existing fence line that’s around the substation now and the highlighted 
portion here would be the fence extension which we would have to perform.  The blue line is the existing 
transmission line which is the big overhead lines that go behind the substation and then underneath the blue 
line, the transmission line, is where the transformers will go, then the packet had referred to the cement 
pylons, that’s where the transformers will sit, so and a little background story about the transformers is 
currently right now the, the substations are like a big backbone, they say this is the backbone of the system, 
the transmission carries the current through all the substations, the substations put the power out to the 
street to reach the distribution system, which is what everyone usually sees in front of their homes.  So, 
currently there’s transformers in the substation to the south of this one in Croton Falls and there is nothing 
here at Kent, there are no transformers at West Patterson currently and then the next one is Pawling.  So 
right now, if there’s a problem between these substations, this guy will go dark, if it was bad enough.  So 
what this project will do is increase, excuse, it should decrease the outage times for the population that is 
served off of the Kent substation.  I believe the, by the time the switching is done and everything else, the 
transformers will be able to switch the line in 120 seconds whereas now a NYSEG employee would have to 
drive out to the substation, by the time we call him in it’s a couple hours, so it definitely would be great. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated seems like it, yeah. 
 
Ms. Drake stated and if I could just one make one correction, it’s the breakers. 
 
Mr. Mangels stated or the breakers. 
 
Ms. Drake stated yeah, it’s not the transformers… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 
Ms. Drake stated these are breakers on top of the lines that would be, you know, you break a line and put 
another one in and put it back on. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so there is a breaker up on the pole currently that… 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 4 

 
Ms. Drake stated on the, it’s on the top, right. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I have one at, near my house because when the power goes out they have to 
remember to go up on that pole and… 
 
Ms. Drake stated right. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated some, during one of the 6 day power outages, it took 2 extra days, I finally, I 
pulled, the guy was eating his lunch on the side of the road and I apologetically said would you please, 
when you’re done with your lunch, go up to my house, within a half hour the power was back on. 
 
Ms. Drake stated they pushed it back in. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah. 
 
Ms. Drake stated and that’s kind of like what would happen here, okay, it’s not a transformer, it’s those 
breakers that turn it on and off. 
 
Mr. Mangels stated right just on like an automated, obviously on a much larger scale. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Mr. Mangels stated so I mean and that’s really the gist of the project for this one. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and this control house is on the, between the existing structures and Terry Hill 
Road. 
 
Mr. Mangels stated correct. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated correct, so I think, obviously we want to take a site walk out there and take a look 
at, you know, even though this seems like a very necessary upgrade, we certainly want to make sure we’re 
minimizing any impacts and what might be appropriate for any screening if necessary, et cetera.  I mean, 
that makes sense to everybody, right. 
 
Board Member Brady stated yup. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated lighting would be a concern of ours on the new structure… 
 
Ms. Drake stated okay. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated any lighting should be shielded or not interfere with the neighbors. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Hill Road… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated any generators or fuels tanks to be stored. 
 
Mr. Mangels stated no, no, I think that there was on the package, on one of the notes up there, it said about 
lighting on the control house just one… 
 
Rich Williams stated 100 watt flood light. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 5 

 
 
Mr. Mangels stated thank you. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah, is that a motion sensor light or something that can be switched on… 
 
Mr. Mangels stated no, it is a manual switch. 
 
Rich Williams stated manual switch. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated manual switch, okay well, so it’s not left on just for the purposes of security or is it 
a security light also. 
 
Mr. Mangels stated no, I don’t… 
 
Ms. Drake stated yeah, it will be, it doesn’t have to be, we can negotiate with the light, we obviously realize 
the neighbors, so usually it’s something that heads down to the ground… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah, it depends on the intensity and you know, so, okay. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated I know your notes call for 3 new bays, I think it was or steel structures. 
 
Mr. Mangels stated right… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated but I see on the plan there’s four 20’ by 20’ layouts, I’m just curious… 
 
Mr. Mangels stated I would have to definitely review and get back to you.  As far as I know, like I said, the 
breakers sit on that and from what I was told or from what I was kind of trying to understand was, it’s like 
a, like I said it was a concrete pad or a like a mini pillar that stands on a… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated it sounded like there was a… 
 
Mr. Mangels stated and then there is a pole almost and the breakers on top of the pole and that’s what 
attaches to the transmission line. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated it said for 3 and then I saw 20 bays, 4 bays laid out on this particular plan. 
 
Ms. Drake stated I think there’s 4 bays, there’s 4 spots. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated I think it was on… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, anything from anyone else for this evening. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated on the EAF 5b, you didn’t check it, is there any conflict with the 
comprehensive plan on… 
 
Rich Williams stated no. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated it should be checked no conflict, on 12b, I checked the old maps, there may 
have been a barn on the property in the southeast corner, otherwise there’s nothing and you’re not 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 6 

 
disturbing the southeast corner, so I don’t think archeology comes into play either, so you should check that 
one as no, and on 14 the habitat is checked as being urban… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated yeah, I saw that too. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated shouldn’t it be suburban, I mean… 
 
Mr. Mangels stated okay. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated just you know so it’s, Ted’s not even listening so we can’t ask the 
environmental expert on this… 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated no, I wasn’t, what did you ask. 
 
Rich Williams laughs. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated at least he’s honest. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated I’m writing a dissertation. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated their EAF, there is a section that talks about the existing habitat of the sites 
and they checked urban, would that be appropriate to call this an urban site. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated no. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated no. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated there’s nothing urban in Patterson. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated suburban. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated yeah. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated okay, so just, alright… 
 
Ms. Drake stated we’ll correct it. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated that’s just… 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated urban hasn’t gotten here yet. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated good, I was hoping that was the case. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you didn’t have to say yet. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated he keeps trying. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated that’s all I have. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 7 

 
Chairman Rogan stated alright, so I think it would make sense for us to schedule a site walk, if you can 
stake out the improvements, let, coordinate and communicate with Rich so we can get out there.  It seems 
pretty straight forward of a site walk but I mean, but just make sure you at least give us an indication of 
where everything’s going. 
 
Mr. Mangels stated okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated alright. 
 
Mr. Mangels stated yeah, great. 
 
Rich Williams stated yeah I mean, the project, I mean this really is not a big significant impact… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated no. 
 
Rich Williams stated this not a big significant… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 
Rich Williams stated application which is why I gave the EAF a review based on the weight of the project, 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah. 
 
Rich Williams stated I mean I focused more on part 2 and whether we needed to, you know it met any 
triggers, I didn’t think it did.  There are some cleanup issues on the plans… 
 
Ms. Drake stated yes. 
 
Rich Williams stated I identified… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 
Rich Williams stated but the bigger issue on this whole project is the process and the fact that they are 
putting those structures behind and that triggers a couple of additional things that you’re going to need to 
take care of, one is an area variance and a use variance for the Zoning Board of Appeals because any time 
you have a municipal boundary it creates a property line, so and all of our zoning requirements are always 
from property lines.  And my second question to you is, have you made any contact with the Town of Kent 
being as there are improvements in the Town of Kent. 
 
Mr. Mangels stated no, we were going to start here. 
 
Ms. Drake stated we didn’t and we were really waiting to take direction from this Board first… 
 
Rich Williams stated okay. 
 
Ms. Drake stated so we most certainly can you know, go to the Town of Kent and tell them and show them 
this corner that we’re going to be, you know, doing some excavation underneath the transmission line and 
let them know… 
 
Rich Williams stated okay. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 8 

 
 
Ms. Drake stated so that would be the Board recommendation to… 
 
Rich Williams stated yeah, I would recommend they reach out to Kent… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated it’s always nice to be, have everybody involved early. 
 
Ms. Drake stated yeah, no, I agree. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated otherwise people sometimes feel like their being left out and they’re not important. 
 
Ms. Drake stated we would just say that the Town of Patterson said don’t bother. 
 
Rich Williams stated thanks, they love us anyway. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated that’s alright, since it’s going, the electricity is mainly going to go to 
them, it’s alright. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right, yup. 
 
Ms. Drake stated yes, we will do that. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated awesome, sounds great. Okay, thank you for your time. 
 
Mr. Mangels stated thank you. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we appreciate it. 
 
 
 3) PATTERSON GARDEN CENTER – Site Plan Application 
 
Ms. Rosemary Osborne, the property owner and Mr. Mark Payne, the business owner were present. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, is anyone here for Patterson Garden Center, come on up please, oh this is 
Poppy’s… 
 
Ms. Osborne stated hi. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated can you state your name for the record please. 
 
Ms. Osborne stated Rosemary Osborne and this is Mark Payne, he is the new tenant who has done all of the 
marvelous cleanup on Poppy’s Place. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated wonderful, I thought all the marvelous cleanup was done a few month ago, from, 
under the previous tenant. 
 
Ms. Osborne stated we cleaned up the real mess. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated it looks great, I passed by there the other day and it caught my eye, 
something was looking good. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 9 

 
 
Ms. Osborne stated yup. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated good, excellent, so what are we looking to do, site plan application for the new 
tenant, what’s the new tenant… 
 
Rich Williams stated well not exactly… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Rich Williams stated here’s where we are with this, back in April of 2012, Rosemary came back in after her 
former tenant left, left with some issues and mess and had spent an incredible amount of time and effort 
cleaning the site up and repairing the damage that he had done.  The Planning Board had granted a, they 
had renewed the site plan approval for the project and pending her getting everything cleaned up, we were 
going to sign off on the plat… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 
Rich Williams stated ultimately what happened is, she couldn’t get a tenant, so everything kind of got put 
at abeyance at the time.  So, essentially what happened is that site plan approval had renewed at that time 
has now since lapsed and expired, she now has a tenant, he’s done a great job out there cleaning up, he 
went a little bit too far on a couple of things… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated a little ambitious, huh. 
 
Rich Williams stated but other than that it looks great and they want to do some additional improvements 
that were not originally contemplated on the plan… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Rich Williams stated they are listed out, I think 1 through 7… 
 
Ms. Osborne stated yes. 
 
Rich Williams stated in Rosemary’s memo, I think all of them are fine with exception of 2 and 4 which I 
think we need Ted to weigh in on because both of them are in close proximity to the stream. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated they’re all paver displays. 
 
Rich Williams stated we hadn’t, yeah, we hadn’t talked about. 
 
Ms. Osborne stated I apologize, what was 2 and 4. 
 
Rich Williams stated 2 was the… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated 20 by 25… 
 
Rich Williams stated seating area over in the southwest corner… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated southeast. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 10 

 
 
Ms. Osborne stated okay. 
 
Rich Williams stated southeast corner. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated the southeast front corner… 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated southwest corner. 
 
Rich Williams stated it’s actually the southwest corner. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I’m just reading what the, yeah. 
 
Rich Williams stated yeah, it’s actually in the southwest corner and 4 was the pavers behind the building. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Rich Williams stated other than that I think everything else is a positive addition to the site plan and you 
know, pending that, what we need to do tonight is adopt a resolution reaffirming the site plan approval and 
adding those seven items, I think there were. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated yup, what’s the objection to item 4 in the rear of the building. 
 
Rich Williams stated no, its up close to the corner of the stream. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated what do you want to do, those two items, what exactly do you want to do. 
 
Ms. Osborne stated we’re just putting down paver blocks and making a outdoor display area, that is number 
2 in front of the building to the southwest side… 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated that’s number 2 and… 
 
Ms. Osborne stated and then in the rear of the building… 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated right, number 4. 
 
Ms. Osborne stated again, paver blocks and put up a pergo, 10’ by 10’… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated what’s a pergo, you mean a pergola… 
 
Rich Williams stated pergola. 
 
Ms. Osborne stated pergola, I’m sorry. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oh I’m sorry, I’m thinking of pergo laminate flooring and I couldn’t figure how you 
were going to do that outside. 
 
Ms. Osborne stated I apologize. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 11 

 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated Rosemary, it’s been a while since I’ve been there, what is there now. 
 
Ms. Osborne stated we’ve done everything that the site… 
 
Rich Williams stated cleared ground right now. 
 
Ms. Osborne stated clear ground. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated no problem, okay. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated I, you know… 
 
Ms. Osborne stated everything’s been removed. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated and you’re not going to, so this is just display… 
 
Ms. Osborne stated display. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated landscape display. 
 
Ms. Osborne stated land, yeah. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated does it require much excavation to do it. 
 
Mr. Payne stated no, it’s just adding of a basin, setting of the pavers in the sand, you know, it’s nothing 
that’s going to be… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated it’s like when you go up to Unilock, you see their displays out front. 
 
Mr. Payne stated that’s exactly what it’s… 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated and what are you going to do about weed control. 
 
Mr. Payne stated it’s going to have the joint sand there to, that’s like a, it acts like a grout so it inhibits 
the… 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated you have phragmites in there. 
 
Mr. Payne stated excuse me. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated do you have phragmites out there. 
 
Rich Williams stated not in either of these two locations but we had talked and we had talked about the 
stream clearing the phragmites out. 
 
Mr. Payne stated right, yeah there’s not in this… 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated okay and there will be no further expansion, it’s just a display area. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 12 

 
Mr. Payne stated right. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated I don’t… 
 
Mr. Payne stated there is the existing split rail fence there, so it will be… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated Rich…. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated what I’m concerned about, are you going to bring in fill and gravel and depositing 
material that could get pushed into wetlands or are you more trees, plants, basic landscape stuff. 
 
Mr. Payne stated yeah, decorative, we’re mulch and decorative gravel and stuff like that but that’s going to 
be in the bins behind, beyond… 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated right that’s not. 
 
Mr. Payne stated that’s not going to be in this area ever. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated no but that’s defined because behind those bins are wetlands and the previous tenant 
we had a problem with, it went from landscape to construction yard and junk and Rosemary got stuck with 
it. 
 
Mr. Payne stated yeah, no, that’s, right. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Ted, why, would it make you more comfortable if we make a condition that these 
items, these new items be just delineated with some survey ribbon and they call you and have you come out 
and just check it. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated yeah, I’ll come out there over the weekend, I don’t want to stop you though… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated no, exactly. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated I recommend to the Board that we just go forward, get this done… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yup. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated you’re doing a nice job out there… 
 
Mr. Payne stated thank you. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated I’m not trying to hold you up. 
 
Rich Williams stated I have pictures if anybody wants to see pictures. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated sure. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated I think we just need to define the boundaries, that’s all, okay. 
 
Ms. Osborne stated I think you’ll be very happy. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 13 

 
Chairman Rogan stated wow, very nice. 
 
Rich Williams stated right and Mr. Chairman here is a copy of the resolution that was done in 2012, you 
just want to reaffirm that… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated sure and we’ll add the conditions. 
 
Rich Williams stated and add in the seven additional items as special conditions as being part of the site 
plan… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated sure. 
 
Rich Williams stated then tomorrow I’ll get copies of the site plan made, they’ll sign it and you’re done. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated very nice. 
 
Board Member Brady stated oh wow. 
 
Board Member Brady stated look how nice it looks out there. 
 
Rich Williams stated don’t smile, it’s not done yet. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated I just think that they’ve been through enough, you respect the property and that’s all I 
care about. 
 
The Secretary stated do they have to waive public hearing. 
 
Mr. Payne stated we just want to make it a nice place. 
 
Ms. Osborne stated Ted, you’ll see when you go out there. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated very nice job. 
 
Rich Williams stated no, because they’re just reaffirming the approval. 
 
The Secretary stated okay. 
 
Mr. Payne stated I’ll be there Sunday. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated alright, I’ll stop in. I just, keep going. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated its really nice job, it’s the nicest we’ve seen that site in a long time. 
 
Ms. Osborne stated yes. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated cleaning up the wall in the front, it just looks sharp when you’re driving by. 
 
Mr. Payne stated yeah, we finished the backside. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 14 

 
Board Member Taylor stated I just had one question on the sketch that you submitted here, you’re moving, 
you said you’re moving the porta-john and the dumpster. 
 
Ms. Osborne stated yes. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated but the sketch has them in the old place. 
 
Ms. Osborne stated I tried to X that out, I did it in red and they’re going there. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated yeah, I understand, right, they need to be drawn in here I think and this needs 
to be, you need to correct the sketch so it reflects what you’re saying you’re going to do. 
 
Andrew Fetherston stated Michelle. 
 
Rich Williams stated well that’s what the 7 conditions do, they’re going to supersede. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated and then the porta-john next to the stream, is that a problem or… 
 
Rich Williams stated well that’s where they, that’s where it was originally approved… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated oh okay. 
 
Rich Williams stated and they are gracious enough to put it in the back, away from the stream. 
 
Mr. Payne stated it’s further from the stream now than what it was approved at previous. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated yeah, as long as it’s maintained, it’s contained. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated fine, no problems. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, so in the matter of Patterson Garden Center and Supply, 3192 Route 22, I 
will move that the Planning Board reaffirms the final site plan approval, as previously approved on April 5, 
2012, in addition of the 7 items contained within the October 29, 2013 letter to the Board and discussed at 
this meeting tonight… 
 
Board Member Montesano stated second. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and the condition that Ted is notified when those items are staked out, the two we 
spoke about, so he can just field verify before they’re constructed.  Mike, you second. 
 
Board Member Montesano seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan asked for all in favor.  The motion carried by a vote of 5 to 0.  
 
Chairman Rogan stated alright, thank you and welcome to Patterson… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated good luck. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I don’t know where you started your business but it looks like you’re off to a great 
start with the work you’ve done. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 15 

 
 
Mr. Payne stated thank you. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated look forward to seeing you open. 
 
Mr. Payne stated thank you, appreciate it. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, thank you. 
 
Ms. Osborne stated thank you very much. 
 
 
 4) KENNETH DEFREITAS – Wetlands/Watercourse Permit 
 
The Applicant did not appear. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated do we have Ken, I’m sorry I’m going to butcher this last name… 
 
The Secretary stated it’s Defreitas. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Defreitas, is Ken Defreitas here, no. 
 
The Secretary stated his contractor was representing him… 
 
Rich Williams stated he was not coming, yes… 
 
The Secretary stated but he is not here even though he knew to be here. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, do, Ted, do you want to talk on this one. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated I went out, I think Rich or… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oh Brian Finney was supposed to be here. 
 
The Secretary stated yes. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated actually Michelle, I think, sent me an e-mail asking me to go out there, way to go 
Michelle… 
 
The Secretary stated thank you. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated I went out to the site, the entire house, everything he’s got there is within the buffer 
of the wetland and the stream, it’s a typical area in Putnam Lake where everything’s been developed 
around the stream and the wetland, I don’t have issue with the gentleman fixing a very bad situation, which 
is that… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated that’s a shed. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated it’s just for a deck, correct, extension of a deck. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 16 

 
Rich Williams stated deck and a shed. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated the deck and the shed. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated the shed is existing. 
 
Rich Williams stated the shed’s been there for a while. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated yeah. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oh, so permit as proposed. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated yeah, the only comment I had was that I don’t know if it’s allowed by code or 
whatever but there’s a very large metal container, you know, storage container… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oh the… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated like a sea container. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated like a sea container there and it’s right next to the stream, I don’t know if that’s 
allowable, it’s not very attractive. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated is that a separate issue from this plan though. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated it’s on top of, it’s right next to the stream so. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated its right there. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated is that an issue to stop this gentleman from doing it no but I just don’t know if that’s 
an appropriate location for that. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated want to make a condition of this wetlands approval, the condition that that thing is 
removed… 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated well I don’t know, is it allowed by that… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated if it’s not, well if its violation, it would be in violation anyway, so… 
 
Rich Williams stated if it’s in violation, it’s in violation, exactly right, we can just let Nick know that we 
have a concern and we’ll have Nick take a look at it. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated that’s appropriate. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated I don’t know what’s in there or whatever but… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated but that’s an improvement to his house and, I mean, what he’s proposing to do and 
it’s appropriate and everything around it is lawn, so it’s not a factor. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 17 

 
Rich Williams stated are you saying that this is an insignificant application and they should waive the 
public hearing. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated yes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated fair enough, everybody kind of agree with that, I make a motion based on the 
information submitted from our ECI that we make a motion to waive the public hearing. 
 
Board Member McNulty seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan asked for all in favor.  The motion carried by a vote of 5 to 0. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and I’ll move that in this matter that we approve the wetlands permit for the shed 
and deck as submitted in the application within the wetland buffer. 
 
Board Member McNulty seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan asked for all in favor.  The motion carried by a vote of 5 to 0. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated on the condition… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated on the condition… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated well are we going to conditionalize it on… 
 
Rich Williams stated no because if it’s a problem, it’s a violation that was what we just said… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated oh, so we’ll take care of it that way, okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated it will be bumped over to Nick, yeah. 
 
 
 5) PUTNAM LAKE VFW – Site Plan Waiver 
 
Mr. Henry Zempsky was present. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, is anyone here for Putnam Lake Volunteer Fire Department. 
 
The Secretary stated no, it’s the VFW. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated VFW. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated VFW. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated I’m here. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated why did I say volunteer fire department. 
 
The Secretary stated because you saw the VF. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 18 

 
Chairman Rogan stated that’s funny, is anyone here for the Put Lake VFW, that’s horrible, I apologize to 
the VFW. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated that’s okay, when I came into the Lake, the Fire Department had a waiting list and I 
wasn’t allowed to join. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated sir, ah, we won’t hold that against you. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated well thank you. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated how are you. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated hi, my name’s Henry Zempsky, I’m… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I haven’t seen you in a long time Henry. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated I’ve been aging rapidly, so it’s hard to get around. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I hope everything is okay. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated everything’s fine. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, you’re smiling so and you’re a Jets fan… 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated and I’m a jets and I’m a Mets fan too, so it’s a pretty important night tonight. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated and they’re doing well. 
 
Andrew Fetherston stated it’s a good year for that. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated well there is a very important question I have to ask you… 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated yeah. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and you need to be very observant when you answer this, do you like Geno Smith 
as your quarterback, think about this very closely… 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated I actually am getting to like him a lot more than I was in the beginning of the season. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated me too, fair enough, okay. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated as long as he wins, he likeable. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated gotta have a little bit of laughs. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated I think you have to recuse yourself. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I think so, I might have to.  Okay, so what are we doing here, site plan waiver 
application, Rich. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 19 

 
Rich Williams stated the VFW has had a canvas entry way for a number of years and due to weather and 
other difficulties, it has fallen into disrepair and they are seeking to replace it with an 8’ wide, right… 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated yes. 
 
Rich Williams stated by 24’ long, wood covered porch going over the walkway into the building. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated this is at the front entrance or… 
 
Rich Williams stated its the front entrance. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated it seems pretty simple, I mean… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated is that what the size of the canvas one was previously. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated yeah well we would buy a 10’ by 20’, you know the things you’d get at Costco, the 
carports… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated yup. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated and we went through, I want to say 3 or 4 of them, you know depending upon the 
winter, sometimes it didn’t make it through and… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated they’re ugly. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated yeah, I think I’ve seen it collapsed once or twice. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated and they’re pretty ugly. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated does this structure require a building permit. 
 
The Secretary stated yes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yes. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated then that should be reflected in the site plan application. I’m unclear based on 
your memo why this entitled to a waiver if there isn’t a site plan, you seem to be saying there isn’t… 
 
Rich Williams stated there isn’t, correct, there is not a site plan, I don’t even know we have an accurate 
survey… 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated we, I brought one in from 1948. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated and you’ve done nothing to the building since. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated no, of course not. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 20 

 
 
Laughter. 
 
Board Member Brady stated that was quick. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we’ll have to replay the minutes on that one. 
 
Rich Williams stated the intent of the Code is any time there is a 10% or less expansion of a building that 
due consideration be given and Mike you can chime in if you want, to waive the requirements, setup for 
those applications that are very minor and almost ministerial in nature. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated and the same exemption under SEQRA except it’s 4,000 square feet. 
 
Rich Williams stated right, correct. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated which is bigger than the whole building. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah. 
 
Rich Williams stated so I, my memo I tried to lay out all the facts for you, so you could determine whether 
it was appropriate or it wasn’t appropriate. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated but would it be a nice compromise to, as part of this waiver require an as built 
survey or any as built something that shows the improvement with the delineation of the building on the lot 
and be done with it and then at least there’s a survey on the file and that’s a pretty minimal thing to just 
locate something that’s already existing, you know.  You said there’s not an accurate but that’s pretty 
straight forward… 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated I have the original purchase of the building… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated you know in 1948… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated so I have, I have that structure, I came in here and I thought we put the little, square 
where the canopy is going to go, thing. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah, okay. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated I don’t know if the canopy is to scale. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated well that’s… 
 
Rich Williams stated I think we can get around that, I think the bigger issue for the Board… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated it looks off… 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 21 

 
Rich Williams stated is the fact that we’ve got what a, god what was it a 20’ by 30’ building and now we 
have a 60’ by 40’ building with a 20’ by 20’ pavilion and no plans on file reflecting any of that… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oh yeah. 
 
Rich Williams stated I think that was their concern. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated oh okay… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah, this is the… 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated you’re talking about the beer garden, that’s what I call it. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated the liquid refreshment pavilion, please. 
 
Rich Williams stated yeah, I’m talking about the whole, I’m talking about the whole building. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated just the building, the footprint of the existing building and the proposed structure. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated alright. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated do you have somebody in the VFW that can sit down with this and turn it into 
something with dimensions that reflects what’s there now. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated I would, I may be able to find someone that could do that. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated great. 
 
Rich Williams stated Ron… 
 
Board Member Montesano stated ask one of the fathers if there kids are taking drafting in school, please. 
 
Rich Williams stated this isn’t the property, they don’t even have a survey of their holdings of the property. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated oh, it isn’t. 
 
Rich Williams stated no. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated this isn’t a survey. 
 
Rich Williams stated it’s much, this is .6 acres, their property is like 1.6 or 1.7 acres… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated look at this way… 
 
Rich Williams stated they have added considerably all the way through. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 22 

 
Chairman Rogan stated if we asked for a site plan because one doesn’t exist, you would need a survey and 
you’d need all the work that goes along with it, if just asking for a survey showing the improvements, I 
think is pretty minimal… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated it’s going to be about $1,000. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah, exactly, it’s not… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated and you would spend that just to get to the engineer to make a site plan, so. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and then moving forward, exactly. I couldn’t have said it better myself. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated well I went to the Town, the Town really didn’t have anything… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated and my next stop is to go to the County to see if they have records of us, no shot, huh. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you may but… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated you can try but… 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated okay. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated if not, check with Carmel’s VFW, see if they’ve got a survey of VFW 
properties. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated yeah, I don’t think so. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated does anyone want to make this motion, or should I do it. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated I’m not sure what we’re making a motion on here. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated in the matter of the VFW, Veterans of Foreign Wars Post 9257, 4 Fairfield Drive, 
Patterson, make a motion that the Planning Board grants a site plan waiver to allow the construction of the 
covered entry way as submitted in the documents with the condition that a current survey of the existing 
building, lot lines and the improvements that are proposed within this and submitted to the Town prior to a 
certificate of construction compliance being issued for the proposed structure, so moved. 
 
Board Member Montesano seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan asked for all in favor.  The motion carried by a vote of 5 to 0. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated fair enough. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated so after you get your, after you’re done building, you need to have a surveyor create an 
as built survey. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated very simple. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 23 

 
Mr. Liguori stated that’s the condition of the waiver. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated of our building, I need a survey… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated of the property. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated of the property. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated of the property. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah, very simple, it’s not going to be a big deal, you get the surveyor out there, 
then you’ll have current one. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated I won’t be able to build this canopy until that is done… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated no, no, you can build it, you just can’t get a compliance on it. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated oh okay, fine. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated you can build it but when you’re done building it… 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated alright. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated our intent isn’t to slow you down, it’s to move forward so now you’ll have 
something that’s up to date, the Town will have something that’s up to date and you’re in great hands and 
we appreciate… 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated okay, so it’s my turn to get something done.  Okay, I will definitely do that. 
 
Rich Williams stated and your next step is to go see Nick in the Building Department and Cheryl… 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated right. 
 
Rich Williams stated and get a building permit. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated okay, didn’t I do that… 
 
Rich Williams stated no you didn’t. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated not yet. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated no. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated okay, I tried to do that. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated that’s how you got here. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Henry, please extend our thanks to everyone for the service to the country, Our 
Country, we appreciate that. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 24 

 
Mr. Zempsky stated thank you, Veterans Day is Monday so we’ll be firing weapons. 
 
Board Member Brady stated hopefully me too. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated which ones, the ones that are in the building. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated no, not in the building. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated thank you sir. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated thank you very much gentlemen, I appreciate it. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated have a great evening. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated have a good night. 
 
Mr. Zempsky stated have a good night. 
 
The Secretary stated bye Henry. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated they used to store them and they disappeared. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we have this young lady sitting here, what are you here for, Sol Shine… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated Sol Shine. 
 
Ms. Perez stated the sign, a new sign. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yes. 
 
 
 6) SOL SHINE SCENTAL – Site Plan Waiver & Sign Application 
 
Ms. Kirsten Perez was present. 
 
Rich Williams stated this is an application that came in yesterday, it’s fairly minor in nature… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we recognize her. 
 
Rich Williams stated we asked her to step in tonight to see if the Board would consider it. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated well you have to get permission from everybody behind you in the room. (All 
previous audience members have departed at this time.) 
 
Ms. Perez laughed. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated and we need to know if you’re firing weapons. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated that’s right and in which direction. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 25 

 
Ms. Perez stated as long as they shoot the other way because I’m the… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated you’re down the street. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and what is your name please. 
 
Ms. Perez stated Kirsten Perez. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I remember you but I’m sorry I didn’t remember your name. 
 
Ms. Perez stated nice to see you all again. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, nice to see you, and so what are you looking to do. 
 
Ms. Perez stated okay, so there should be a picture of the sign, it’s white, the reason why the background is 
black is because the lights were off the day they look it.   
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Ms. Perez stated so it’s just going to be white, I’m looking to open a coffee shop within the shop that 
already exists, so… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated your shop is in the, by the corner of the monument. 
 
Ms. Perez stated yes. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated yes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right, okay. 
 
Ms. Perez stated so at this point I’ve gone as far as getting a 3 bin sink, in an existing 2 drain… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated slow down a second, let me back you up, at this point, are you working with the 
Health Department. 
 
Ms. Perez stated not the Health Department, the Health Department to… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Ag & Markets, I’m sorry… 
 
Ms. Perez stated yes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay great, that’s all I need to know. 
 
Ms. Perez stated so I’ve already got the license, not the license yet but the application for the license is 
there and paid for… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 26 

 
Ms. Perez and I’m following what Kwame said to do, so it was just a refrigerator, and it doesn’t have to be 
industrial because it’s just a coffee shop, no food and if I have food it will be Otis Spunkmeyer muffins 
which are pre-wrapped… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated cool. 
 
Ms. Perez stated and biscotti which is pre-wrapped and that’s as far as I’ll go with food. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated that sounds wonderful, I’m glad you’re working with Kwame. 
 
Ms. Perez stated thank you, he’s a great guy, I like him. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated he is, a gentleman. Okay, so the sign for this, so it’s going to be white background 
and what color are the letters… 
 
Rich Williams stated actually if we could just back up a bit. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated yeah, I’m a little confused at what we’re doing. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated this is a window, it’s on the glass of the window. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oh, oh I see, I’m sorry. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated is that correct, it’s on the glass of the window. 
 
Ms. Perez stated that’s just the glass of the window. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated got it, you said it’s all going to be white, I thought you meant it was white, what 
was black on here will be white, is what I thought you meant. 
 
Ms. Perez stated yeah, no, no, just regular glass and then that’s white print because… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated the lettering is white. 
 
Ms. Perez stated yes. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated and this is the same as the sign you did before on your other window. 
 
Ms. Perez stated yes. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated except now it says coffee shop. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated right. 
 
Ms. Perez stated yes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so… 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 27 

 
Ms. Perez stated so it’s 2 separate windows, the boutique is on one side and the coffee shop will be on the 
other side and I’m putting hardwood floating floors down to separate the retail space from the coffee shop 
space, also so I don’t get stains on the carpet… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so septic… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated if… 
 
Rich Williams stated I’m going to use the mic so everybody behind me, can hear me, right Michelle, yeah.  
So really there’s two separate issues here and the first issue that needs to addressed is the use of the site 
because if you don’t grant the use of the site, then there is no reason to have a sign and what she is doing is 
she changing a portion of the retail space to basically a restaurant use, food service. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so the question would be, how many seats in this café. 
 
Ms. Perez stated I’m not going to go anywhere over 14 [seats], I’m going to have more like Starbucks 
lounge sections… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Ms. Perez stated I have a wicker set and then I have 2 leather chairs and I’ll do 2 or 3 bistro tables, it’s not a 
big space, so… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, the one, so the one thing, did Kwame, even though you’re going through 
them, Ag & Markets for the approval for the food, did he point you back to the Health Department for 
septic, is that area on, that’s not on sewer, so you still need to go to the Health Department to Mike 
Budzinski to get approval for the 14 seats for your septic because it’s still a restaurant.  That’s sometimes 
where people fall through the cracks between Ag & Markets and Health… 
 
Rich Williams stated she said she went to the Health Department, I stopped right there. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah but that’s… 
 
Ms. Perez stated yeah they, Mike… 
 
Rich Williams stated no, I, listen… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated that’s what I’m saying, it’s happened in other cases where they built a market in 
Brewster, the Green Brothers, Green Brothers, remember that one that was next to Tom & Jerry’s… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated oh, you mean the corner one… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated what was it… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated the one on the, the one that was… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right in the center of that plaza, they built that exact same situation with no septic 
approvals and it didn’t have the size for it and after the fact, everybody tried to play catch up, it caused a lot 
of problems because the Building Department said, or someone said oh you’re working with Ag & Markets 
great but Ag & Markets doesn’t do water and septic approvals… 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 28 

 
 
Rich Williams stated right. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated they only do your food portion of it, so you still, we still want to caution you, you 
still need to go and I think that’s important to know… 
 
Rich Williams stated talk to Mike Budzinski. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated to talk to the engineering… 
 
Ms. Perez stated because Mike’s the one who told me to go them… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Mike Budzinski or Mike Luke. 
 
Ms. Perez stated Mike Luke. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated that’s a different person, that’s a food person not an engineer. 
 
Ms. Perez stated I have to call… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so and he may have and in fairness, he may not have thought about this… 
 
Ms. Perez stated okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated but that will be something that and it’s only 14 seats and it’s not a full service 
restaurant but still… 
 
Ms. Perez stated no, not at all, yeah. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you want to make sure that you’re not going to run afoul because if you have those 
seats and then your septic system fails, then you’re going to be, you know have a restaurant that’s shut 
down. 
 
Ms. Perez stated okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so, you know, I’m fine with the change in the retail space but obviously, you know, 
we have to think about, if there parking, are we creating a problem for parking. 
 
Rich Williams stated I took a look at the overall size of the building based on the information we have of 
the building and it appears that given the use and given the proposed use, they would need somewhere 
between 20 and 25 parking spaces and then I took the existing parking area that they have up there and laid 
out parking, it’s not well defined up there but I laid out a scenario where I could get about 21 parking 
spaces in there… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated wow. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated is that behind the building. 
 
Rich Williams stated yeah, it’s behind the building, so we’re in the ballpark. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 29 

 
Chairman Rogan stated awesome, that sounds great. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated I have a question on the restaurant use, as far as technically, anything that 
serves, even if they just serve coffee, it’s a restaurant. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated it, you know I can’t speak to this perfectly but they use different levels of flows 
depending on full service versus, they use like say tavern or something less than that that would be… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated café. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you know where your pre-packaged, really all you’re doing is cleaning coffee cups 
and you can use single service items and you can cut down on your water usage significantly, so it’s not 
nearly like it would be for a full service restaurant and that’s put in there… 
 
Rich Williams stated understand there are two parts, there’s the Health Department end of it and then 
there’s the zoning end of it… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated and the Town. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 
Rich Williams stated as far as the zoning goes, when I took a look at it and we had this conversation that if 
she had coffee pots in there and she was giving it to her customers as they came in, no harm, no foul, it 
would still be retail, as soon as you start selling food products, for me that starts to change the use a little 
bit… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated even if it’s just coffee. 
 
Rich Williams stated right because what we’re going to do, we’re going to say it’s okay to do, she starts 
selling doughnuts out of there, she starts selling sandwiches out of there… 
 
Ms. Perez stated no. 
 
Rich Williams stated I know that but… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you know what though… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated but what if you had a soda case and you sold soda… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated this happens all the time. 
 
Rich Williams stated we’re not going to know, that’s what I’m saying. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated that becomes a restaurant. 
 
Rich Williams stated well no not necessarily… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated too many experiences with exactly what he’s saying and I don’t fault you for that. 
 
Rich Williams stated you know the A&P is not a restaurant. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 30 

 
 
Board Member Taylor stated so what does the code say about this. 
 
Rich Williams stated again, we’re walking in a slightly grey area… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated as always. 
 
Rich Williams stated alright, as always because you know, she’s not a full blown food service with a food 
counter but she’s not really retail anymore so… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated as soon as you put the seating in, you lose the retail characteristic. 
 
Rich Williams stated that’s right. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated so the seating would be a key component. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated yes because if it was just coffee and pre-packed foods, then you’re retail, it’s like going 
to the gas station. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you know Kitch-n-Kaffe in Mahopac has a few seats and they’re a retail and its all, 
it’s not even divided like this, it’s one retail space and they do cooking classes in there and they do things 
like that, they have a few, and it’s coffee and a few little pre-packaged things and it’s still retail, when you 
go in there you don’t feel like you’re in a restaurant, you feel like you’re in a retail place where you can 
stop and have a cup of coffee.  Barnes and Noble is not a restaurant, it’s a book store. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated right but what we’re doing is, we have uses that don’t conform to the very strict… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated you know definitions in our code and that’s always going to be the case. We’re never 
going to be able to define every single use that’s out there… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated sure. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated so when you look at the zoning code and you look at the definition of restaurant or, we 
don’t have café defined but this would be you know, this would be the classic definition of café, you know 
where you have a very limited, I’m talking limited, you know one packaged food item and coffee, that’s 
you know so that’s, when Rich and I talk about these things, well we know, well what are the 
distinguishing characteristics between retail and a restaurant, you don’t sit down in a retail establishment, 
you generally don’t, you know, I mean you go to Borders and they have a Starbucks in it with a lounge well 
you know, now you’re changing the use and so we kind of follow the same guidelines when we apply the 
code to what comes in. 
 
Rich Williams stated and understand the issue for me, the big issue here is this is grey, it’s not black and 
white, if it was black and white I would have signed off on it.  I don’t see this as a big issue… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 31 

 
 
Rich Williams stated I don’t see this as a problem in any way but because it’s grey, I want it clearly on the 
record, I want there to be a record built of exactly what we’re proposing to do, why we’re doing it so that 
you know, in the future, anybody that comes in, they can say well here’s what we did and here’s the limits 
on it. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated now does she need to go to Zoning, if she’s changing use. 
 
Rich Williams stated no, no. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated no. 
 
Rich Williams stated no. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated so we… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated only if the use was illegal. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated it’s in the General Business area. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated and when I say illegal, not permitted. 
 
Rich Williams stated not permitted. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated that’s what I mean, not permitted. 
 
Board Member Brady stated the triple compartment sink that you put with this, that to me would tell me 
that it’s being used more commercially and going to be used bigger than just making coffee. 
 
Ms. Perez stated the reason why Kwame said I had to have that, that and a refrigerator, I have a very small 
refrigerator with freezer on top, it’s actually smaller than my home refrigerator, that’s just to store creamer 
and milks and whipped cream and ice, so and then the 3 bin sink is you have to have it on your property to 
clean your largest item, sterilizer, wash and rinse.  My largest item is an airport which is the coffee pots that 
you see at Hess, so that has to sink deep enough. 
 
Board Member Brady stated alright, it makes sense, okay. 
 
Ms. Perez stated and that’s really the biggest item I’ll be cleaning. 
 
Board Member Brady stated it’s a big sink, you know, you see it in commercial kitchens you don’t see 
them in little… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated she exactly right though on why. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated I had a client that needed to get the same thing. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah. 
 
Board Member Brady stated no, it makes sense, it does, you have to keep it clean. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 32 

 
Board Member Taylor stated so do we need an exception or just the fact that you stated it, is that enough or 
do have to… 
 
Rich Williams stated well as long as the, I would say that the Board needs to take a vote just, you know a 
simple vote saying, acknowledging the use of the site is changing. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated we don’t need to wait for the Health Department. 
 
Rich Williams stated that’s enough to build the record.  No, because they’re independent agency that’s 
going to grant or deny their you know, their own rules. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated so that’s another step in your process, above and beyond us. 
 
Ms. Perez stated yes, I’ll get on that tomorrow but my question is years and years and years and years ago, 
there was a bar upstairs and then in my establishment years and year and years ago there was a hair salon 
which was upstairs and downstairs, that’s what makes me think the septic is okay because if there was a bar 
and there’s all these bathrooms and it’s such a huge facility, I really, it makes me just think that the septic is 
alright… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated that seems reasonable but that doesn’t mean we can… 
 
Ms. Perez stated that’s where my thinking is. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated but that’s not our approval obviously. 
 
Ms. Perez stated okay and also, my space already has seating in it, people come in and they sit and they 
read books anyway but I just serve them hot tea… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you allow people to read books in your place. 
 
Ms. Perez stated you bet I do, people actually still read books. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I think I just changed my opinion now, that’s awesome, that’s good. 
 
Ms. Perez stated yeah but I do want you to know I already have seating areas within my retail space which 
my clientele are already used to and accustom to. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, so I guess we can do this in the form of a motion for the acknowledgment of 
the change in use to allow the café in place of part of the retail space, I mean that seems… 
 
Rich Williams stated that’s perfect. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated can I have a second on that. 
 
Board Member McNulty seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan asked for all in favor.  The motion carried by a vote of 5 to 0. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 33 

 
Board Member Taylor stated he’s shaking his head. 
 
Rich Williams stated no, I said it’s perfect. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated oh okay, alright, okay, it’s just you were shaking your head. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated was he shaking it side to side or… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated yeah, side to side. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah well sometimes he gets confused between yes and no. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated how’s your business going. 
 
Rich Williams stated it’s the senior setting in. 
 
Ms. Perez stated you know it has its good days and its bad days… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oh no. 
 
Ms. Perez stated but I’ve always been able to make overhead, no profit yet but I’m only there 6 ½ months. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated welcome to being in business. 
 
Ms. Perez stated thank you, so I’m hoping, thank you, I’m really hoping that the coffee shop sort of it gives 
it that boost that I need as to make you know, make it profitable. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated what Michael, what counsel said about changing from a café where you have one 
item and coffee, almost every place I’ve ever seen that opens saying I just want to do x, within 3 months is 
saying, hey can we add a fryer plate because people are asking for bacon, egg and cheese, and you’re 
shaking your head no and I’m but what happens is people that can’t pay their bills and they’re saying 
people keep asking for something, can I just provide this one little thing, please, please, please and you 
don’t have it  set up properly, it’s not really a zoning issue for my experience with it, you only have a 3 bay 
sink and only a refrigerator and now you want a fry pot and you don’t, you want these different plug in 
electrical devices… 
 
Ms. Perez stated god as my witness and I say here and I will put it writing… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated fair enough. 
 
Ms. Perez stated I don’t want that in my business, it’s too much work for me, I’m a one man show, I’ll be 
there 5 am to 9 pm, 7 days a week… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yup. 
 
Ms. Perez stated I don’t have enough hands… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated not ready to start cooking. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 34 

 
 
Ms. Perez stated I’m doing aromatherapy and wrapping presents and making baskets and coffee now, so I 
think that’s enough for me. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated wow, well in the matter of… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated what I think we need to say to you is if you decide to go beyond what you’ve 
said to us, you need to come in and talk to us about it… 
 
Ms. Perez stated okay. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated because you’re already in a grey area here. 
 
Ms. Perez stated yes, I have absolutely zero plans to do that and if I were to ever do that, I would find the 
right location for that but it’s just so not me. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated sign application, second for it… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated sure. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated awesome, SEQRA… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated yup. I’ll make a motion on the sign application for Sol Shine Scentral, is 
that how you said… 
 
Ms. Perez stated Sol Shine Scentral with an S. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated good stuff, on SEQRA for that, I declare a negative determination for the 
sign application. 
 
Board Member Montesano seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan asked for all in favor.  The motion carried by a vote of 5 to 0. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay 
 
Board Member McNulty stated and for approval of the sign as outlined in the picture on the glass, I 
recommend we approve that. 
 
Board Member Brady seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan asked for all in favor.  The motion carried by a vote of 5 to 0. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated any opposed, okay. Good luck to you. 
 
Ms. Perez stated come on in, your first cup’s on me. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated good luck. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so you’re going to go and see the other Mike tomorrow, huh. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 35 

 
 
Ms. Perez stated I’m going to give him a call, I’ll see if I can get in touch with him over the phone and… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah, actually you know call before going because he might be out tomorrow. 
 
Ms. Perez stated okay, you got it. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Ms. Perez stated thank you, can you please say his last name again for me. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Budzinski. 
 
Ms. Perez stated Budzinksi, I don’t want to say it wrong. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated B-U-D-Z-I-N-S-K-I. 
 
Ms. Perez stated okay, thank you so much you guys. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated you’re welcome, good luck. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated take care, good luck to you. 
 
Ms. Perez stated come in for a free cup, please. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oh, you need the money, we’ll pay. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated well first stop is the beer garden at the VFW. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated I want to go shoot a gun off. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated after the beer garden. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated yeah, then we’ll get the coffee. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated do you shoot before or after you drink. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated you can shoot while you’re drinking. 
 
Board Member Brady stated you put the can down and you shoot. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated just remember you gotta learn how to put the bullet in. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah… 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 36 

 
 7) OTHER BUSINESS 
 
  a. Windward Holdings Corp. – Request for Zoning Change 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay under Other Business, we have Windward Holdings Corp, request for zoning 
change. 
 
Rich Williams stated hopefully we’re doing the site walk on that this Saturday. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oh, right, right, okay, that’s the Route 311… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated yup. 
 
  b. Patterson Fire Department – Proposed Local law 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay and then Patterson Fire Department.  I sent Rich an e-mail but I really thought 
the way that this was crafted with everybody’s input, a lot from you gentlemen was really, really done 
well… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated yes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and I appreciate that, I think you did an awesome job pulling everything together.  
It was written in a way that really built the, you know the thought process, the chronology of events and the 
gathering of information and so, anyway I thought nice job. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated yeah, I agree too, thanks Rich… 
 
Board Member Brady stated yeah, you did a nice job. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated you got all our thoughts. 
 
Rich Williams stated from what you saw, it’s been modified from with some comment from Ron and from 
Mike Liguori, if you will. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated great. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated is that the latest copy we had tonight. 
 
Rich Williams stated yes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I haven’t compared that against what I read this morning… 
 
Board Member Montesano stated did we ever… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated mine were typos… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oh, wonderful. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated since I’m so good with the computer and sending out messages, did we 
ever get a conclusion if the emergency sign would be connected to a generator, in case of emergency. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 37 

 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oh, I don’t know. 
 
Rich Williams stated their whole facility is… 
 
Andrew Fetherston stated details, details… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated is on a generator… 
 
Rich Williams stated their whole facility is on a generator, they’re running the sign… 
 
Board Member Montesano sated I realize that but is the sign going to be part of that system or are they 
going to get another one or is it in fact going to be connected to that generator. 
 
Rich Williams stated they’re running the line back to the building, I can’t imagine they’re not. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated I would assume it would be on an emergency circuit. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated we’re going to sit there and say yeah, they’re going to do that, I’d like to 
hear them say they’re going to do it… 
 
Rich Williams stated Mike… 
 
Board Member Brady stated but we’re not recommending that they do it. 
 
Rich Williams stated yeah, you’re not. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated there you go, yeah. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated I’d just like the question answered, is it in fact connected. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated along… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated when they come back to us, we will ask that. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated yeah. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated yeah. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated they have a sign out there, right. 
 
The Secretary stated no. 
 
Rich Williams stated no. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated no. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated in an emergency they could hook it up. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated as of right now… 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 38 

 
 
Chairman Rogan stated along that same conversation… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated we’re referring, we’re recommending to not permit the signage that they’re… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated no… 
 
The Secretary stated the local law. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated the change in… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated the local law. 
 
The Secretary stated the local law. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 
Rich Williams stated which would exempt them from getting a sign permit. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated well that I get but we don’t know that the Town Board’s going to do, that’s what it 
comes down to… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right, that’s true. 
 
Rich Williams stated correct. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated so the Town Board could adopt it, they could go forward to build their sign… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated hence the question is it going to be on the generator. 
 
Rich Williams stated but if the Town Board exempts them, then nobody has… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we don’t have the right… 
 
The Secretary stated it doesn’t matter. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated it doesn’t matter. 
 
Rich Williams stated the right to question it. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right, it’s a moot point. Tommy had mentioned the variable message boards and we 
had kicked that around a little bit about their practicality and I misspoke about the price but not by a whole 
lot, they were, we’re putting one in a grant proposal right now for an Entergy grant through Indian Point 
and we pay around $11,400 for those but it’s a little bit more when you add in, if you want to have wireless 
capabilities, sit in your office and type in the messages which John Tully does it for what they use, 
Highway, so it brings it up close to $15,000 with that like yearly plan for 5 years.  They run anywhere, so 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 39 

 
11-15 grand and we have 5 of them right now, the County, hopefully 6 soon and we use them all the time, 
they’re great. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated I would think a monument sign as proposed is probably going to run around 
$15,000 at least. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay but you know, you bring up a lot of great points about, you know, when 
there’s an emergency, who’s the most responsible, who is the most appropriate person to be putting the 
message out, you know and you know I guess we could kick this one around all day, let’s see what happens 
now, so is the, do we need a, any kind of a motion to send that finished document to the Town Board… 
 
Rich Williams stated I would think so. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated to adopt that… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated we should, yeah. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so moved. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated yup. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated can I have a second. 
 
Board Member Montesano seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan asked for all in favor.  The motion carried by a vote of 5 to 0. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and let’s talk about case number one since… 
 
The Secretary stated no one showed. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Thunder Ridge. 
 
 Thunder Ridge Sign Application Discussion 
 
The Applicant did not appear. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so. 
 
Rich Williams stated issues galore. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, there always is, it seems like with this place. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated where do we start. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated that’s what I was talking about. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah, I saw it when I looked, the paintball sign, yeah. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated you people are very picky. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 40 

 
 
Mr. Liguori stated then I saw the site plan… 
 
Rich Williams stated the interior of the building. How many parking spaces did she have there, 13… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated hold on, I have to count the P’s… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated Rich, I noticed on that Thunder Ridge sign, there’s a frame now where 
there used to be a lit fixture, a lit light, is that what this proposed to, just re-cover that fixture or are they 
going to put all new. 
 
Rich Williams stated no, it looks like it’s a different shape, it’s square… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated yeah that’s what I took from this. 
 
Rich Williams stated that one has a… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated but you don’t know for sure, maybe they just proposed square but really 
intend to just cover that, so you don’t, you’re not sure either… 
 
Rich Williams stated with the issues we have up there, I couldn’t tell you what they’re proposing to do. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated can’t even see the sizes. 
 
Rich Williams stated and you know I was a little amazed that they made the sign application because there 
were 2 signs that were already up that weren’t legally permitted to begin with that they didn’t care about 
getting a permit for in the first place, so and they’re not even here tonight. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated that was another question I had, what prompted this application, did it… 
 
Rich Williams stated I have no idea. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated but that alone, let’s, let’s, let’s talk about process, we have an application for 
something with other items shown on it that are not, have not gotten approval, they’re not here, I’ll make a 
motion we table this application until they’re here and until the application represents both signs or both 
items being put on there. 
 
Board Member Brady stated I’ll second that. 
 
Chairman Rogan asked for all in favor.  The motion carried by a vote of 5 to 0. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, are there other issues about this, this application or this site that you want to 
talk about for tonight because I don’t want to… 
 
Rich Williams stated I don’t think we need to belabor the whole issue. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 41 

 
Chairman Rogan stated fair enough. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated I just had a question, the height of signs, what does the code say about height 
of signs. 
 
Rich Williams stated it really doesn’t. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated so they can put it at 25’ and it would… 
 
Rich Williams stated it’s the discretion of the Planning Board. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated okay, how do we feel about 25’. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I think you need, almost need to see it, it’s hard to envision… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated that’s pretty high. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated it’s high, yeah… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated balloon text. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated a balloon test, right. 
 
Rich Williams stated it’s where they are now. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated how is the, the sign that we just did where the tack shop is and the restaurant. 
 
Rich Williams stated that was about 18, 20’… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated Route 22… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated 18, okay, that’s pretty high. 
 
Board Member Brady stated wow, that’s a lot higher… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated is that, they’re still open the restaurant. 
 
Rich Williams stated yes. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated you’re talking about Wings & Things. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated I just saw the sign for that tonight as I driving by. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated the signs. 
 
Board Member Brady stated I’ll talk about that later. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated they’re proliferating across the lawn again. 
 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 42 

 
  
 
 8) MINUTES 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we have minutes for September 26th and October 3rd… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated I guess just don’t violate the code did not resonate. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated yeah, I haven’t had the chance to look at them. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated um… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated I had one question before we do minutes… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we’re not doing minutes, so… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated I did read the minutes, so one thing came out of it, we had suggested that we 
send something, a request to the Town Board about Boniello about whether they would allow us to 
proceed… 
 
Rich Williams stated correct. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated did we get a response from the Town Board. 
 
Rich Williams stated you didn’t get a response from the Town Board but Mr. Boniello did. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated really. 
 
Rich Williams stated yes. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated and do we know what that response was. 
 
Rich Williams stated well… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated was it in writing or did he go to a meeting or something. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated oh, no, no, it was in writing. 
 
Rich Williams stated yeah. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated yeah. 
 
Rich Williams stated it was in executive session, I don’t know how much I can say. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated well the, well but we’ve… 
 
Rich Williams stated so, right. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 43 

 
Mr. Liguori stated well I guess we can… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated well are we allowed to proceed or not, is… 
 
Rich Williams stated not at this time. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated fair enough. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated okay, that’s what we needed to know. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated that’s all we need to know… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated that’s all I wanted to know. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated because we don’t need the background on it really. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated outside, around the corner. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Ted, please… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated I don’t care about the details, okay. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated speaking of Mr. Boniello… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated unless we want to go into executive session, then we can tell them. 
 
Rich Williams stated I don’t care. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated off the record. 
 
Andrew Fetherston stated lower the cone of silence. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated I’m on the record. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated you are, yes. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated if you recall at the last meeting when Tony was here, we discussed about me going 
over there to look at potential wetland issues, it was unclear what he was in or out of, I want the Board to 
know that I’ve made several attempts to go over there to see him, each time I went there he has not been 
there, I recorded this to Rich the other day, the building that he was in is no longer occupied, the only thing 
that seems to be functioning is the repair shop which is the building in the back, there was one person there 
that, a person that doesn’t speak very good English and the place is an absolute mess, to me it looks like a 
place ready to be abandoned, there is a tremendous amount of lawn machinery all over the place, none of it 
is in the wetland, everything there is in the buffer, we always knew that… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated so he has not encroached anymore into the wetland or the wetland buffer but the area 
is a complete mess… 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 44 

 
Chairman Rogan stated Ted, I want to clarify for the record because I, what you said I have maybe a 
different idea or opinion of, when you said you went there 3 times, did you have appointments all 3 times 
or did you just stop by hoping he’d be there. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated I stopped, he told me to stop by any time, he’s there. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated there is, I left messages with the guy for him to call me, that has not happened and 
the guy told me, you know, he doesn’t know where he is. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated each time, I don’t know if he’s fearful that I’m there to cause trouble, I don’t know, 
there is a leaking oil drum there, it’s not threatening the wetlands but there’s oil all over the ground… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated well that’s a concern. 
 
Ted Kozlowski stated and yeah, and the machinery, if I was a client, I would be very upset, that machinery 
is all out in the open, it’s just a mess and to me there doesn’t appear to be, it’s not my idea of what a proper 
business should be run like with outdoor power equipment and all.  I was very surprised of the condition of 
the area. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated I just had a question, Rich you sent a response letter to Cingular Wireless, I 
guess they put in, they sent you a letter or an e-mail, do you remember that. 
 
Rich Williams stated is this the one where the generator was outside of the compound… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated I’m not sure where that, where what was outside the compound. 
 
Rich Williams stated the generator, they were placing a generator outside of the compound and… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated I don’t know what it was really in reference too. 
 
Board Member Brady stated building permit application. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated for Echo Road… 
 
Board Member McNulty stated where is Echo Road, is the one up on Lake Carmel, up on the hill. 
 
Rich Williams stated yes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah, Patterson Crossing. 
 
Rich Williams stated yes. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated Patterson Crossing. 
 
Rich Williams stated yes, they were of opinion that they were, they didn’t need site plan, we educated them 
on the error of their ways. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 45 

 
 
Board Member McNulty stated yeah in your response, that’s what I got, I just, have you heard back from 
them or anything… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated is that the same. 
 
Rich Williams stated yes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated is that, they came to us for site plan approval. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated what did they say. 
 
Rich Williams stated they changed the location of the generator to inside the compound. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated they came to us, we walked that a couple years ago how could they… 
 
Board Member Montesano stated the one that used to be outside the gen, used to be outside the fence. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated yeah, it was a while back. 
 
Rich Williams stated no, it’s a different company. 
 
The Secretary stated different provider. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Rich Williams stated that’s when they were expanding the site. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated oh okay. 
 
Board Member McNulty stated and it was a mess, I remember that, did they clean it up. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated they had it outside the fence from the time it went in… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated with no way of, if you had a truck, you could go up there and pick up a 
nice generator, drive in and take the wires off. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay so, there were minutes, Ron read them, Tommy said he hasn’t had a chance, 
anybody else had a chance to go through them… 
 
Board Member Brady stated I read the September 26th, the October 3rd, I wasn’t here and I didn’t read 
those. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated I didn’t read the October ones. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, alright, so we’ll table that for now for approving those.  Motion to adjourn. 
 
Board Member McNulty seconded the motion. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2013 Minutes Page 46 

 
 
Chairman Rogan asked for all in favor.  The motion carried by a vote of 5 to 0. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:02 p.m. 


	November 7, 2013 Agenda
	November 7, 2013 Minutes.pdf

